
IMPROVING OUR COMMUNITY 

COLUMBIA GATEWAY URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY 

CITY OF THE DALLES 

Columbia Gateway Urban Renewal Agency Advisory Committee 
Meeting Minutes 

CALL TO ORDER 

Tuesday, September 16, 2014 
5:30 PM 

City Hall Council Chambers 
313 Court Street 

The Dalles, OR 97058 
Conducted in a handicap accessible room. 

Chair Grossman called the meeting to order at 5:30 PM. 

ROLLCALL 
Members Present: Gary Grossman, Jennifer Botts, Atha Lincoln, Robin Miles, Linda Miller, 
John Nelson, Greg Weast 

Members Absent: Steve Kramer 

Staff Present: City Attorney Gene Parker, Administrative Secretary Carole Trautman 

Others Present: Mid-Columbia Economic Development District (MCEDD) Loan Fund Manager 
Eric Nerdin 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
Grossman led the group in the Pledge of Allegiance. 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
It was moved by Weast and seconded by Nelson to approve the agenda as submitted. The motion 
carried unanimously; Kramer absent. 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
It was moved by Weast and seconded by Nelson to approve the August 19, 2014 minutes as 
submitted. The motion carried unanimously; Kramer absent. 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
None 

ACTION ITEM - Grant Application for United Church of Christ Congregational - Phase II 
Project 

Page 1 of5 



MCEDD Loan Fund Manager Nerdin highlighted the staff report. Staffs recommendation was 
to move to recommend to the Agency approval of a $44,999.51 Urban Renewal grant for the 
replacement of 41 windows, as stated in the staff report. Nerdin also pointed out the alternative 
recommendations. 

Weast asked if City Attorney Parker was representing the Agency or the applicant since his 
signature was on the grant application. Mr. Parker stated he was acting as attorney for the City at 
this meeting. After some discussion, it was determined that the actual date of the grant 
application should be July 31, 2014 and the applicant's bank should be listed as Washington 
Federal Bank rather than Bank of America on the application. Weast stated he could justify the 
Agency considering funding for the historic portion of the building, which totaled approximately 
$26,000; but he had a concern that a large portion of the project went towards the newer building, 
which he did not consider historic. He said it seemed more like a weatherization project which, 
in his opinion, should not be considered for Urban Renewal (UR) funding, and suggested that the 
applicant look for other funding sources, at least for the newer building. Nerdin stated that the 
Agency had, in the past, funded projects that protected buildings and enhanced the livability and 
usability. Weast stated that the newer building was only 50 years old, and money spent on it 
would not increase the tax base because of the church's non-profit status. The newer building 
did not have the appearance of an historic building, nor would it attract people, he said. Nerdin 
commented that the newer portion did qualify as historic, and he pointed out that the UR grants 
were only available to non-profit entities, except for the recent changes to the UR Plan for the 
"for profit" fa9ade improvements. Nerdin stated the church was within the Urban Renewal 
boundaries, and he felt both church buildings could fall under the "enhancing the building 
usability" grant criterion. 

Regarding the supplemental information provided on the grant, Miller asked if anyone had 
considered repairing rather than replacing the wood windows. N erdin said he had not considered 
that option because the information was brought up late in the process, and that aspect really was 
not a consideration for the Advisory Committee. The Historic Landmarks Commission (HLC) 
had voted to approve the project. City Attorney Parker stated that Mr. Gleason understood that 
due process for an appeal on an HLC decision would go before City Council, and it was not the 
Advisory Committee's prerogative to reverse the HLC decision. 

Weast asked if the application review could be tabled for a month to give the applicant time to 
seek out other funding sources and possibly research refurbishing options for cost effectiveness. 
Nerdin stated there were almost always other funding sources available, and he reiterated that he 
felt the application fell under the "enhancing building usability" UR guideline. 

Pastor Deborah Allen, 1809 Montana Street, The Dalles, Oregon, stated that all of the windows 
met the state's historic standards because they were over 50 years old. The church participated in 
a Public Utilities District audit review, and they had funded some weatherization repairs, Pastor 
Allen stated. She said they had not pursued other funding sources, because they were advised 
that the application met historic and UR grant guidelines. Pastor Allen commented to the 
Committee that "You might not get a buck, but you might get a quality of life." Chair Grossman 
said he appreciated all that the church had done. He said the Committee was tax-base driven, 

Page 2 of5 



and he hoped that applicants had researched other opportunities prior to seeking UR funds. 
Pastor Allen asked if that was part of the current guidelines for filing an urban renewal grant 
application. Grossman said the Committee often asked applicants to have a little "skin in the 
game," some of which came from other funding sources. 

Nikki Lesich, 1814 East 14th Street, The Dalles, Oregon, thanked the Committee for the grant 
assistance on the church's Phase I project. She pointed out that coming before the Agency was 
not the congregation's first effort, it was the third or fourth effort to work towards preserving the 
building so that it could continue to be useful for many groups and activities other than worship. 

Chair Grossman reported that Steve Kramer had called him earlier in the day and had voiced 
some concerns as to how much "skin in the game" there should be for the project on behalf of the 
applicant. Nelson said he could see a benefit in considering the entire project, because it would 
preserve the building, enhance the beauty of the building, and improve the environment for that 
section of town. Yet he understood the concern that a non-profit entity would not increase the tax 
dollars. Nelson asked if the applicant could achieve the same end result and save money by 
refurbishing rather than replacing windows in the historic building. Pastor Allen said she spent 
hours on a cost comparison, and refurbishing costs exceeded replacement costs. 

It was moved by Miles and seconded by Nelson to recommend to the Agency approval of a 
$44,999.51 Urban Renewal grant to United Church of Christ Congregational to be used for 
replacing 40 windows in the building located at 111 East 5th Street, The Dalles, Oregon. The 
motion failed; 3 in favor, 4 opposed. Kramer was absent. 

It was moved by Miller and seconded by Botts to recommend to the Agency approval of a 
$43,000 urban renewal grant to United Church of Christ Congregational, and the congregation 
would supplement the additional $1,999.51. The motion carried unanimously; Kramer absent. 

ACTION ITEM - Recommendation Concerning a Memorandum of Understanding Regarding 
Services Provided by The Dalles Main Street Organization for the Agency's Property 
Rehabilitation Grant and Loan Programs 

It was moved by Miller and seconded by Nelson to recommend to the Agency approval of the 
Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) with the Dalles Main Street program for the purpose of 
providing services in conjunction with the Agency's Property Rehabilitation Grant and Loan 
Program. 

Botts asked if the intent was for the Agency to annually fund $10,000 for the program. City 
Attorney Parker indicated that was the intent. 

Chair Grossman called for the vote. Grossman, Botts, Miles, Nelson, Lincoln, and Miller voted 
in favor, Weast abstained, the motion carried; Kramer absent. 

ACTION ITEM - Recommendation Concerning an Amendment to the Loan Agreement Between 
the Agency and Discover Development LLC 

Page 3 of5 



City Attorney Parker summarized the staff report by stating that the loan payment for Discover 
Development LLC (Discover) was due October 12, 2014; therefore, an extension of time to 
December 12, 2014 was requested. 

It was moved by Weast and seconded by Nelson to recommend to the Agency approval of the 
amendment to the October 12, 2009 Loan Agreement with Discover Development LLC, to 
extend the due date for the balloon loan payment from October 12, 2014 to December 12, 2014. 

Botts stated she had a problem with the Agency funding the audit expense. City Attorney Parker 
stated staff discussed that and felt that since Discover was following guidelines mandated by the 
Agency, the Agency should pay for it. Weast said a lot of improvements had been made to the 
facility, and if Discover defaulted on the Loan Agreement, the Agency would take measures to 
recover the improved facility. It was brought out in discussion that the loan was on the business, 
not the property. Botts said she had a concern with the Agency funding an audit for a business 
owner. City Attorney Parker reported that the security on the loan would be Discover' s assets; 
the Agency still owned the property. 

After further discussion, it was moved by Botts and seconded by Miller to recommend to the 
Agency approval of the amendment to the October 12, 2009 Loan Agreement to extend the due 
date for the balloon loan payment from October 12, 2014 to December 12, 2014, with the 
condition that Discover Development LLC pay for the audit expense. The motion carried 
unanimously; Kramer absent. 

ONGOING URBAN RENEW AL PROJECTS UPDATE 

A. Granada Block Redevelopment Project - Michael Leash, Rapoza Development 
representative 

• Developers finalized a $350,000 term sheet from an investor; waiting on the final 
version 

• There is an additional draft 1.15 million dollar term sheet under review 
• Developers are working with a company that is sourcing new market tax credits; 

outsourcing six million dollars to developers 
• When investors come together, Rapoza will be structured to move forward with the 

acquisition 

Mr. Leash stated he appreciated the Committee's patience and vote of confidence. He outlined 
the time frame for the project and reported that the projected opening date would be October 
2016. 

FUTURE MEETING October 16, 2014 

Page 4 of5 



} 

ADJOURNMENT 
Chair Grossman reported that Jennifer Dewey was appointed as a new Committee member. The 
meeting was adjourned at 6:28 PM. 

Respectfully submitted by Administrative Secretary Carole Trautman. 

Page 5 of 5 




